Alaska State Legislature
Legislative Council
Minutes

ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
LEG SLATI VE COUNCI L
JANUARY 30, 2014
11: 05 AM

MEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Hawker, Chair
Senator Peter M cciche, Vice Chair
Representative Max G uenberg
Representative Craig Johnson
Representative Bill Stoltze
Representative Peggy WI son
Senat or John Coghil |

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Denni s Egan

Senat or Charlie Huggi ns

Senat or Kevin Meyer

Senator Gary Stevens

MEMBERS ABSENT

Representative M ke Chenaul t
Representative Lance Pruitt

OTHER MEMBERS PRESENT
Representative Les Gara
AGENDA

APPROVAL OF M NUTES
RATI FI CATI ON OF CHARI TY EVENTS
OTHER COWM TTEE BUSI NESS

SPEAKER REG STER

Kat hryn Kurtz, Revisor of Statutes, Legislative Affairs Agency

Lisa Kirsch, Assistant Revisor of Statutes, Legislative Affairs
Agency

Pam Varni, Executive Director, Legislative Affairs Agency

Jessica Ceary, Finance Director, Legislative Affairs Agency



11: 05: 19 AM

CHAIR M KE HAWKER called the Legislative Council neeting to

order at 11:05 a.m in room 532 of the State Capitol. Present
at the call were Representative Hawker; Senators M cciche,
Coghi I, Dunl eavy, Egan, Huggins, Meyer, and Stevens. Chair
Hawker noted that the House of Representatives was still in

| egi sl ative session which is why the other House nenbers were
not present.

APPROVAL COF M NUTES
a. Novenber 21, 2013
b. Decenber 18, 2013

11: 07: 00 AM

VICE CHAIR M CClI CHE noved that the minutes fromthe Legislative
Council neetings on Novenmber 21, 2013 and Decenber 18, 2013 be
approved.

The notion passed with no objections.

11: 07: 28 AM

CHAI R HAWKER stated for the record that Representatives Johnson
and G uenberg joined the neeting at this tine.

RATI FI CATI ON OF CHARI TABLE EVENTS

a. Al aska Governors Awards for the Arts & Humanities Reception
benefitting the Alaska Arts and Cul ture Foundation

b. Tinda Art Auction benefitting the Sealaska Heritage
Institute.

c. 2014 Fahrenkanp-Kelly dassic Putting Tournament benefitting
the Armed Services YMCA and the Bartlett Foundati on.

d. Grl Scout Annual Auction and Fundrai ser benefitting the Grl
Scouts of Al aska.

CHAIR HAWKER said his staff and he have verified that all of
the events being ratified today benefit 501(c)(3) organizations
in good standing, the requirenent for approval.

Chair Hawker noted that Representative Austerman, Counci
alternate, had joined the neeting; as there were enough nenbers
to forma quorum Representative Austerman woul d not be voting.

11: 08: 34 AM

VICE CHAIR M CCI CHE noved that Legislative Council ratify the
following charity events, which were previously sanctioned by
the Legislative Council Chair in accordance wth AS
24.60.080(a) (2)(b):

Legi sl ati ve Council Meeting 2 of 9
January 30, 2014 M nutes
Approved February 27, 2014



a. Al aska Governors Awards for the Arts & Humanities Reception
benefitting the Al aska Arts and Cul ture Foundati on.

b. Tinda Art Auction benefitting the Sealaska Heritage
Institute.

c. 2014 Fahrenkanp-Kelly C assic Putting Tournanment benefitting
the Armed Services YMCA and the Bartlett Foundati on.

d. Grl Scout Annual Auction and Fundrai ser benefitting the Grl
Scouts of Al aska.

The notion passed with no objections.

CHAIR HAWKER stated for the record that Representative Stoltze
arrived prior to the making of the notion.

V. OTHER COWM TTEE BUSI NESS
a. 2014 Revisor’s Bill Approval
CHAIR HAWKER said this item was a mnisterial process for
Council to approve the annual Revisor’'s Bill and pass it on to
the House Rules Committee. He pointed out that there was a
small issue with the “U version that was distributed earlier
and he was just handed an “N version, which has one mnor
change from the previously distributed “U version. He asked
Kathryn Kurtz and Lisa Kirsch to briefly testify about this
item and to specifically address the change between the “U
and the “N’ versions of the bill.
KATHRYN KURTZ, Revisor of Statutes, introduced Lisa Kirsch, the
new Assi stant Revisor, who would be presenting the bill.
LI SA KIRSCH, Assistant Revisor of Statutes, said the Revisor’'s
Bill is designed to inprove the statutes and correct and renove
any deficiencies, conflicts, or obsolete provisions.
CHAI R HAWKER requested, with the concurrence of the conmttee,
that Ms. Kirsch limt her comments to explaining the difference
between the two versions (“U and “N'). He noted that the bill
itself wll be entered into the record as will the sectional
sunmmary.
Representative Peggy WIlson joined the neeting at this tine.
M5. KIRSCH said the difference between the “U version and the
“N’ version appears in section 15, on page 9, line 20. The
words “but not limted to” appear in brackets and all caps in
the “N wversion, which neans they wll be deleted. This
deletion was not present in the *“U version. There is a
statutory section in Title 1 which assunes that if the word
“including” is present, the |anguage “but not limted to” is

Legi sl ati ve Council Meeting 3 of 9

January 30, 2014 M nutes
Approved February 27, 2014



there as well, so it’s superfluous |anguage. That is the only
change between the “U’ version and the “N version

CHAIR HAWKER asked Ms. Kirsch if it wuld be fair to
characterize the difference between the two bills as a very
sinple oversight in the first bill. She agreed that was so.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG noted there was a tinme before the
statute was enacted that it was routine to use the |anguage
“but not limted to.” He said he assuned at sone point the
Revi sors have gone through and elimnated that |anguage
everywhere else in the statute.

M5. KIRSCH responded that they <certainly have tried to.
Cccasionally, they find ol der places where it occurred, but in
current drafting they try to catch it and prevent it from going
into the statute.

11:14:30 AM
VICE CHAIR M CCl CHE noved that Legislative Council approve the
2013 Revisor’s bill version 28-LS0904\N and request the House
Rules Conmittee to introduce it.

The notion passed with no objections.
b. FY 13 Legislature Audit

CHAI R HAWKER said there would be no notion necessary for this
item It is tinme for the annual audit report of the State of
Al aska Legislature conducted by external auditors. M. Varni is
here to formally present that Audit.

M5. VARNI, Executive Director of Legislative Affairs Agency,
said per statute all expenditures nmade by the Legislature are
subject to an annual independent audit. This is the |ast year
with El gee, Rehfeld, Mertz LLC, the Agency will be going out to
bid for an independent audit for the next three years. The
total amount per year for this audit is $18,250. It is a clean
audit and there are no audit exceptions. She said she would be
glad to answer any questions for the commttee.

CHAI R HAWKER enphasi zed that the conmttee had in front of them
the managenent letter, which is titled “Letter to the Menbers
of the Legislative Council and the Legislative Budget and Audit
Conmittee,” in which there were no significant findings of
nmerit, as well as the Audit Report itself which had on page one
what is known as a “clean opinion.” This neans everything is
fairly, in all material respects, presented.

Legi sl ati ve Council Meeting 4 of 9
January 30, 2014 M nutes
Approved February 27, 2014



The committee had no questions about the Audit Report.
c. Late Travel and Per Di em Requests

CHAIR HAWKER said the next itemis a Late Travel and Per D em
Request from Representative Gara for travel that comenced
February 15 and 23, 2013.

REPRESENTATI VE LES GARA, District 18, said that this travel was
for two trips that are normally paid for wth |egislative
funds. They were constituent trips; one was the Anchorage
Caucus and one was an annual constituent get-together. He said,
li ke nost of you, we assune that the tickets that we give end
up somewhere and the reinbursenent cones, but he was not
informed until Decenber that the boarding passes that should
have gone with those plane tickets were not submtted.

He said, in the interest of full disclosure, that with the way
the office accounts worked last year, we received a certain
amount of noney. He did not spend all that noney and intends to
return the remainder of the nobney not spent on office-related
expenses back to the general fund. He said he is requesting
rei mbursement for the travel, but on the other hand, it wll
probably go back to the general fund. He said he was happy wth
whatever the conmttee decides and these are expenses that
should have been reinbursed; however, he probably nmade a
m stake in not submtting the boardi ng passes on tine.

CHAIR HAWKER asked if Jessica GCeary, Finance Manager of
Legislative Affairs, would please cone forward to speak to this
item He noted that it is customary to get the assurance from
LAA that all is in order supporting such a request.

JESSI CA GEARY, Finance Manager for Legislative Affairs, said
that she has reviewed the docunents submtted by Representative
Gara and everything is in order; the receipts match up with the
claim

SENATOR MEYER asked if it was necessary to keep the boarding
passes and submt them

M5. GEARY responded that her understanding was that the
paperwork was turned in to Representative Kerttula s office but
was not received by the Accounting office within the allotted
time.

SENATOR MEYER wanted to know if it was necessary to turn in
boardi ng passes if the reservations are nade through LAA and if

Legi sl ati ve Council Meeting 5 of 9
January 30, 2014 M nutes
Approved February 27, 2014



the requirenment was different when the reservations are self-
made.

MS. GEARY said the boarding passes should acconpany the fina
travel paperwork. If there is no boarding pass, such as if an
el ectroni c boarding pass is used, then a sinple statenent as to
that fact is acceptable to certify travel was conpleted. In
this particular case, Representative Gara purchased his own
airline tickets, so Accounting did not have any record or
recei ve any paperwork for that travel

SENATOR MEYER further asked how it worked if the reservations
were nmade through Accounting and for sone reason the planes
were not flying; did Accounting get reinbursed for that travel ?

MS. GEARY, in response to additional conmments by Senator Myer,
assured him that if the travel does not take place for any
reason, Accounting may change the dates of travel or request a
refund for any ticket purchased by Accounting on behalf of a
Legi sl ator or legislative staff.

SENATE PRESI DENT  HUGGE NS, addressing Representative Gara
directly, said that while they certainly don't agr ee
politically, he considers hima friend. It seens like this is a
waste of tinme if the funds will be going back to the treasury
anyway. |f Representative Gara wants the noney, he said he was
willing to support him but if it’s going back to the treasury
anyway, this is wasting the conmmttee’ s tine.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said that’s why he nade the disclosure. He
does not have any office expenses he can spend that noney on.
If the committee decides that it’s just nobney going from one
pot to another pot, that’s totally fine and he can accept that.
It doesn’t cause any major harm H's office didn't learn unti
Decenber that sone docunments were missing for the February
travel clains.

CHAI R HAWKER said this disclosure was new to him as the Chair,
and it was not brought forward when this travel request was
brought to his office. He asked if it was the intent that this
noney would nake a full circle from Legislative Council to
Representative Gara and back to the treasury.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said yes; that he thinks legally, he can
only spend that noney on office expenses and he doesn’t have
any additional office expenses.

CHAI R HAWKER said that would color his opinion on the itemthat
he brought forward today.

Legi sl ati ve Council Meeting 6 of 9
January 30, 2014 M nutes
Approved February 27, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE said he supports Representative Gara’'s
request. He said Representative Gara has actually been nore
thorough in comng before the conmmttee than just about any
other late requests received. Whatever personal decision that
he makes, the way that previous office account was constructed,
one paid taxes on it, he may have reasons for doing it. He said
he would not begrudge Representative Gara s personal reasons
returning funds to the treasury. It’s up to Representative Gara
and what he decides to do with that with respect to the way the
previous office account was constructed. It’'s certainly nuch
cl eaner now with Chairman Hawker’s notion which the conmttee
adopted unani nously. It’s Representative Gara's personal
decision and he isn't sure it’'s any of the commttee’ s business
or even relevant to the discussion on the |ate request.

VICE CHAIR M CClI CHE, addressing Representative Gara directly,

said he personally likes him very nmuch and this isn't a
personal comment. He said he was not in support of the past
met hod of office accounts; he struggled with it as well. He

said he’s not aware of a way to return unspent funds. It was
his first year in office last year and it, of course, cost nore
to set up a new office, but he has sone funds he’'d like to
return. He said he does have to agree that there is a sense of
grand-standing in this disclosure and it is a waste of staff
time for these funds to make a circle. He respects
Representative Gara’s opinion to do that. He said if there is a
nmet hod of returning unspent funds, he’'d like to |learn about it.

CHAI R HAWKER asked Ms. Geary if she would prepare a response to
the question of the possibility of returning unspent office
funds that can then be distributed to all Legislators. M.
Geary agreed to do so.

CHAIR HAWKER said he wanted to enphasize that Representative
Gara’s actions before this commttee in no way prejudice any
Legi sl ator who does not return any unspent, unaccounted noney
that was legally, legitimately, and appropriately given to them
| ast year by the vote of this commttee, before he becane
Chairman. He noted that Representative Gara was nodding his
head, and asked for a statenment on the record.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said everyone in this building followed the
rules. He agrees with Representative Hawker’s point and his
personal view is that the nobney should go back to the genera
fund if he can’'t spend it. He will accept whatever decision the
comm ttee makes.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked for perm ssion to dial ogue.

Legi sl ati ve Council Meeting 7 of 9
January 30, 2014 M nutes
Approved February 27, 2014



CHAI R HAWKER agreed and asked that it not be a | ong dial ogue.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said one transaction occurred in the

| ast cal endar year and the reinbursenent will occur in this
cal endar year. The decision whether to turn the noney back that
he’s receiving now will not necessarily be nade until nuch

later in the year. He may say that this is his intent now but
something could cone up that could change his mnd and
therefore there’s a significant difference. He then asked
Representative Gara, with the Chair’s permssion, if it was
correct that it will be in tw different years and sonething
coul d change his m nd.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA responded that the funds were granted | ast
year, they were not spent, so what he has leftover is what he
will give to the general fund. He was just waiting to see if
these travel funds get reinbursed and he personally feels nore
confortable putting them back in the general fund. He said he
totally understands that everybody else can do whatever within
the law was that was in place.

SENATE PRESI DENT HUGE NS asked the Chair to call for the
questi on.

11: 30: 58 AM
VICE CHAIR M CCl CHE noved that Legislative Council approve the
followwng late travel and per diemclainms for travel comrencing
on the followng dates: Representative Les Gara for travel
commenci ng February 15 and February 23, 20183.

CHAI R HAWKER obj ected for the purpose of a roll call
Aroll call vote was taken

YEAS. G uenber g, Johnson, Stoltze, P. W son, Coghi | |
Dunl eavy, Egan, Stevens, M cciche

NAYS: Huggi ns, Meyer, Hawker

The notion to approve the late travel and per diem request
passed 9-3.

SENATE PRESIDENT HUGG NS said he would encourage LAA to
famliarize menbers and their staff wth any new accounting
procedures as soon as possible. He said he celebrates the new
process but is not sure everybody is as famliar with what that
new process wll be.

Legi sl ati ve Council Meeting 8 of 9
January 30, 2014 M nutes
Approved February 27, 2014



CHAIR HAWKER said that his office had just concluded going
through and revising the original draft allowance policy that
was distributed to everyone at the beginning of session. He
asked Ms. CGeary when that would be going out to staff.

M5. CEARY replied that she planned to distribute it this
af t er noon.

CHAI R HAWKER conmended Juli Lucky of his staff and M. Ceary
for working with him to address issues identified by other
menbers in the original draft policy discussed earlier. The
formal policy will be distributed shortly. He asked everyone
present, particularly on the Senate side, to bring to his
attention any issues in those policies that don’'t make sense or
that they don’t understand, so that the policy can continue to
evol ve into a workabl e docunent for the Legislature.

There being no further business before the conmttee, the
Legi sl ative Council neeting was adjourned at 11:35 a.m

11: 33: 47 AM

Legi sl ati ve Council Meeting 9 of 9
January 30, 2014 M nutes
Approved February 27, 2014



